FILED
SID J. WHITE
MAR 8 1993

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

IN FLORIDA SUPREME COURT

BERNARD J. PENN, INtervenor-Appellant

vs.

SIORIDA DEFENSE FINANCE CENTER AUTHORITY, Plaintiff-Appellee

VS. STATE OF FLORIDA, and
All Taxpayers and Property
therein, Defendants

APPELLANT'S INITIAL BRIEF

(originally w/o exhibits, Mar.2,1993)

Attorneys for Plaintiff

R. A. EMMANUEL, 30 S. Spring St., Pensacola, Fl. 32501

RICHARD LOTT, 77 Baybridge Dr. (office Park) Gulf Breeze, Fl.32561 Attorneys for State

Asst.State Attorney, PETER WILLIAMS Judicial Bldg., Pensacola, Fl.32501

Appellant: Bernard J. Penn P. O. BOX 4182, Pensacola, F1.32507 (904) 456-3812

ISSUES NO. I

In the Assistant State Attorney's ANSWER filed December 30, 1992 which was PREPARED by the Plaintiff's and Escambia County's Bond-Issue Attorney at Law, LKL December 8, 1992, to be filed in Court by the statutory-mandated Defendant, STATE OF FLORIDA, It is alleged:

"2"The State of Florida, through its undersigned State Attorney, denies that this Court has jurisdiction or venue, in that Chapter 163, Part I, Florida Statutes, requires that validation proceedings for the Plaintiff's Bonds be instituted in Leon County."

The Appellant respectfully asks this Florida Supreme Court and the Justices thereof to take Judicial-Notice of the fact that the validation of the \$100,000,000 bonds which were created by Interlocal Agreement between City and a County of Escambia, that said Plaintiff, Florida Defense Finance and Accounting Service Center Authority, was created thereby, and has attempted to have Bonds validated by case filed in Escambia County Circuit Court, Case No. 92-5672; Proceedings were not begun in Leon County, But in Escambia County contrary to State Attorney's interpretation of law.

Your Intervenor-Appellant respectfully shows: The Circuit Court of Escambia County, Florida, did not have Jurisdiction of this cause at 8:00 A.M., January 4, 1993 because Florida Statutes 75.06. Publication of notice:

"75.06 Publication of Notice .--

(1) Before the date set for hearing, the clerk shall publish a copy of the order in the county where the complaint is filed, and if plaintiff is a muncipality or district in more than one county, then in each county, once each week for 3 consecutive weeks, commencing with the first publication, which shall not be less than 20 days before the date set for hearing but if there is a newspaper published in the territory to be affected by the issuance of the bonds or certificates..."

"By this publication all property owners, taxpayers, citizens, and others having or claiming any right, title or interest in the county..., or the taxable property therein, are made parties defendant to the action, as if named as defendants in the complaint and personally served with process.

"(2) In actions to validated the bonds of state agencies, commissions or departments, the order shall be published in the same manner in a newspaper in each of the counties where the proceeds of bonds are to be expended, and in a newspaper published in the county in which the seat of state government is located if the action brought therein.

The above statute 75.06 (1) has to be interpreted with Florida Rules of Civil Procedure No. 1.090: TIME:

"RULE 1.090 TIME. (a) Computation. In computing any period of time prescribed or allowed by these rules, by order of court or by any applicable statute, the day of the act, event or default from which the designated period of time begins to run shall Not be included. The last day of the period so computed shall be included unless it is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, in which event the period shall run until the end of the next day which is neither a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday."

The legal advertisement notifying Taxpayers and Citizens, containing the Show Cause Order of the Circuit Judge, run first time on December 14, 1992, a Monday; the 15th was therefore day One (1):

Sun	Mon.	Tnes	Wed	Th	Fri	Sat.		
Dec.	14	15	16	17	18	19	date	
		1	2	3	4	5	days	run.
20	21	22	23	24	25	26		
6	7	8	9	10	11	12		
27	28	29	30	31	1	2		
13	14	15	16	17	18	19		
3	4 Jar	10						

ISSUE NO. 2 continued:

Since the end of Monday, January 4, 1993 had not arrived, that day cannot be counted under Florida Rule of Civil Procedure 1.090 TIME. Thursday, December 31, 1992 is the last day that can be counted (and all business activity had in fact stopped in preparation for merriment); THEREFORE, only seventeen (17) days had elapsed, and Therefore, the Court did not have jurisdiction of the parties or the subject-matter under generally accepted judicial procedure.

ISSUE NO. 3

The Intervenor-Appellant respectfully shows:

1. The SECRECY with which the Bond Underwriters, Committee of 100, City Council, and the County Commissioners organized and formed the Plaintiff. composed of mostly unelected officials with Conflicting Interests to those of the Taxpayers, Elderly, and Those needing jobs and reasonable wages, Should be considered by members of The Court prior to Excusing Issue No.2. 2. Likewise, the EMERGENCY with which the City Council, and The County Commission described Ordinance 38-92 and Ordinance 92-45, has never been explained to the Public, and the Taxpayers, and the persons whom will be getting bureaucratically inspired tax-bills. Should be Considered. The FINDINGS AND DECLARATION OF NECESSITY of both City and County are exactly alike, prepared December O4 and Revised Dec. 09 and 10,1992 were ORDAINED, 14 pages each; AND do not describe the Causes of residents! problems, or the Solutions. Governments, regulations, authorized slavery, and governments are still in slavery-business by monetery inflation and restrictions on behavior. One person can be Microism of All subjected Citizens. Nothing Good can come out of \$100,000,000 Bond issue for Taxpayers to pay, and the Banks-Super Rich to pick up Interest Income not

subject to federal income tax. Issue No. 2 Should not be Excused.

ISSUE NO. 4

Your Intervenor-Appellant respectfully shows: That the validation of the Bonds in question are contrary to Constitution of the State of Florida, 1987 edition. Article VII SECTION 12:

"SECTION 12. Local Bonds.--Counties, school districts, municipalities, special districts and local governmental bodies with taxing powers may issue bonds, certificates of indebtedness or any form of tax anticipation certificates, payable from ad valorem taxation and maturing more than twelve months after issuance only:

- (a) to finance or refinance capital projects authorized by law and only when approved by vote of the electors who are owners of freeholds therein not wholly exempt from taxation, or
- (b) to refund outstanding bonds and interest and redemption premium thereon at a lower net average interest cost rate."
- 1. These Bonds will be payable from ad valorem taxation receipts, as the Exhibits to Complaint call for pledging the Increase in ad valorem tax receipts over the prior year to the repayment of Bonds, calling this "tax increment financing".
- 2. The Documents filed in Circuit Court by plaintiff shows that the County and the City Will pay the principal and interest on the Bonds from Ad Valorem Taxes if the "Tax Increment Financing" is not adequate to cover the obligation.
- 3. Section (a) limits bond-issues to only "finance or refinance capital projects" authorized by law", "only when approved by vote of the electors".

The Plaintiff does not claim to engaged in a capital project, But is trying to validate-bonds to baild a building or facility on U.S.Government land, to be used by Department of Defense as a payroll center. The announced intention is to Increase Tax Base, and initially get 4,000 jobs and families transferred from elsewhere to Pensacola, who own homes elsewhere and have families, relatives, pets, and possessions close to Civil Service jobs averaging \$35,000 per year.

Issue No. 4 continued

The bonds of the plaintiff, subject to this action, is not "authorized by law". When Section 12 of Florida Constitution (Article VII) was passed, there was no Chapter 163 in existence, Therefore, until that section is amended, The Reading of the section, and the former Appellate decisions, would still be deemed to be controlling law, constitutional law.

There has been no "vote of the electors" as to whether these Bonds should be issued (binding all land in county). There has been no Referendum election called for or held by either government to determine whether Bonds should be issued. The plaintiff called the bonds "Revenue Bonds" for sole purpose of avoiding referendum on the Bond-issue.

Since there has been No Referendum of the Electors prior to or in connection with this Validation proceeding, and the Bonds are to be paid from Ad Valorem Taxes even though called tax-increment proceeds, the Members of this Supreme Court should Reverse decision of Escambia County Circuit Court.

In Assistant State Attorney's ANSWER to complaint, per Para. 5, He stated "that the Bonds are invalid in that the Interlocal Agreement pursuant to which Plaintiff was created is invalid and contrary to Florida law." The Intervenor-Appellant alleges and would show But for research involved: That the statute 163. of Florida Law violates the Common Law in force July 4, 1976, 217 years ago, as it covered 65 pages in 1987 Statutes, entitled "Governmental Programs". These provisions are a form and substance of slavery and destroying the dignity of men and women. This law in effect takes away the Ten Commandments and substitutes what some bureaucrat announces to comply with lobbyist or City Manager dictates. The Statute violates the Florida Constitution and the 5th and 14th Amendments of U. S. Constitution by taking away property and individual rights without due-process of law.

Your Intervenor-Appellant respectfully shows That: Chapter 75 Bond Validation Florida Statutes does not allow enough time between decision of the County or City to issue Bonds, and the Time set for Final Hearing thereon, in Order to comply with due-process under State and Federal Constitutions, and the decisions thereon. The Statute calls for Twenty (20) days to elapse between first publication and the Show Cause date, usually the day of Final Hearing. This validation in particular ran from December 14 to January 4, 1993 when the Electors and Public had everything on their minds But a bond-issue. Most all heard that there was to be 4,000 new jobs created and coming to area; But none heard that the \$100,000,000 bond-issue was going to be a Lien on all property in County except for "Downtown Business District"; and that if some President of United States wanted to close the Facility on Corry Field (Payroll Center), He could move everyone to Arkansas, Tennessee, or California---As President Johnson closed Brookley Air Base, Mobile, Ala. in 1965 (because Ala. supported Goldwater in 1964--or someone threw tomatoes on Lady Bird Johnson).

The Past is our best guide to the future. That If U.S. closed or moved Facility, or Changed Technology of Payroll distribution, There would be NO Workers to get "taxed on \$100,000 homes".

That the Issues have been misrepresented to the Taxpayers by the Bond Merchants, New Car Dealers, Bankers, Hospitals, and Attorneys for plaintiff, and the Plaintiff, with two or three articles in Newspaper each day to detract from Public awakening as to magnitude and consequences of allowing a Bond-issue regressive taxation, when the United States (U.S.) can appropriate, borrow, or print-money with which to Build Their Own Building, their Payroll Center, on their own 84 acre site in southeast corner of Corry Station, Pensacola.

Intervenor-Appellant respectfully shows: There has been a series of odd and bizarre events centering around the court proceedings in this Validation Proceeding:

1. The Circuit Judge at the final hearing refused to let Intervenor testify or contest the validation proceeding by stating according to two third-party affidavits:

"Who are you?"

"There are no Intervenors"

"You cannot contest bond validation because you did not file

'Petition to Intervene'

"There is none."

"You are out-of-order. SIT DOWN"

(Judge's bailiff moved toward Penn)

(Penn had to sit down and be quiet)

PENN: I am Bernard Penn, Intervenor.

- " Where is the Court Reporter?
 " I don't need Petition to Intervene.
- 2. The Two plaintiff's attorneys and Asst.State Attorney Peter Williams, All were under obligation to their clients to have determined Why Penn thought he was Intervenor, and Have insisted that Judge let him testify, contradict, cross-examine, etc., and then be ruled against in an unreported hearing. The attorneys were relying too much on Judge. Why?
- 3. The Asst. State Attorney prepared what appeared to be a good ANSWER but the document was typed for Plaintiff's attorneys nearly a month prior, And the Asst. State Attorney only asked plaintiff's witnesses several minor questions on cross-examination; and presented no witness for State or Taxpayers which he was obligated to defend per Chapter 75.05 Florida Statutes.
- 4. The Circuit Judge continued to rooperate with plaintiff's attorneys in their arguments and allegations that Intervenor was delaying, filing frivolous pleadings and allegations without either privately instructing as to a better approach, Appellant had too much to do without this litigation.
- 5. WHEREFORE, the Validation should be reversed and sent back for rehearing.

Intervenor-Appellant respectfully shows:

That Article I Section 8 of United States Constitution states:

"Section 8. The Congress shall have Power to lay and collect Taxes, Duties, Imposts and Excises, to pay the Debts and provide for the common Defence and general welfare of the United States, but all Duties, imposts and Excises shall be uniform throughout the United States;

To borrow money on the credit of the United States; To regulate Commerce with foregign nations, and among the several states, and with Indian tribes.

"To raise and support armies, but no appropriation of Money to that use shall be for a longer Term than Two Years.

To provide and maintain a Navy.

To make Rules for the Government and Regulation of the land and naval Forces;

To provide for organizing, arming and disciplining the Militia...
... To make all Laws which shall be necessary and proper for the carrying into Execution the foregoing Powers, and all other Powers vested by this Constitution in the Government of the United States, or any Department of Officer thereof.

That the County of Escambia does not have a legal right or obligation to better into contract with U. S. Department of Defense allowing County with nominal assistance from City of Pensacola to take on responsibility of building a Facility with an estimated present cost of \$85,000,000. This is contrary to Right of federal government; and there are 1000's of cases reported in Federal Digests stating that it is extremely hard and unlikely that U.S. can be bound to a contract "lasting over Two Years" per above constitutional provision.

WHEREFORE, The Bond Validation should be Reversed.

That populant has worked All Day March 2,1993 and has been incapacited by Plaintiff-Appellee's Motions since January 13,1993.

Appellant prays for Additional Time to Add to this "Brief" the other parts ordered by Appellate Rules.

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT IN AND FOR ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

CASE 92-5672 CA 01

FLORIDA DEFENSE FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING SERVICE CENTER, INC. a public instrumentality,

plaintiff

vs.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA, and the Taxpayers, Property Owners, and Citizens of the City of Pensacola, and Escambia County, including non-residents, etc.

AFFIDAVIT RE: COURT & PENN STATEMENTS ON JAN. 4, 1993 8:00 A.M. AT FINAL HEARING.

STATE OF FLORIDA, COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA:

BILL DAVISON, being first duly sworn, says he was present in the court room 501 in Judicial Bldg. at 8:00 A.M. on January 4, 1993, and heard the following conversations:

- 1. JUDGE MICHAEL JONES: Mr. Lott, proceed with your case.
- 2. BERNARD PENN, Intervenor: Judge...
- 3. JUDGE: Who are you?
- 4. PENN: I am Bernard Penn, Intervenor
- 5. JUDGE: There are no intervenors. You cannot contest the bond validation because you did not file a "Petition to Intervene".
- 6. PENN: Judge, Where is the court reporter?
- 7. JUDGE: There is none.
- 8. PENN: I don't need a Petition to Intervene.
- 9. JUDGE: You are out of order. Sit down.
- 10. Judge Jones' bailiff prepared to enforce Sit Down order.
- 11. Penn had to sit down and be quiet.

BILL DAVISON

Florida Drivers License

Subscribed and sworn to before me this <u>12th</u> day of January 1993.

Notary Public,

My commission expires 4/28/93.

Attach seal.