BERNARD J. PENN,

vs.

Appellant,

Case No. 81,201

By....

FLORIDA DEFENSE FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING SERVICE CENTER AUTHORITY, et al.,

Appellees.

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE, FLORIDA DEFENSE FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING SERVICE CENTER AUTHORITY

On Appeal from the Circuit Court in and for Escambia County, Florida

Case No.: 92-5672-CA-01

Robert A. Emmanuel Florida Bar No. 283797 Karen O. Emmanuel Florida Bar No. 344761 EMMANUEL, SHEPPARD & CONDON Florida Bar No. 283797 30 Spring Street Post Office Drawer 1271 Pensacola, Florida 32596 (904) 433-6581 Attorneys for Appellee



MAR 15 1993

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The scope of judicial inquiry in a bond validation proceeding is limited to whether the public body had authority to incur the obligation, whether the purpose of the obligation is legal, and whether the proceedings authorizing the obligation were proper. <u>State v. City of Daytona Beach</u>, 431 So.2d 981 (Fla. 1983). Consequently, questions concerning political issues, or the financial and economic feasibility of a proposed plan are to be resolved at the executive or administrative level, and are beyond the scope of judicial review in validation proceedings. <u>Id</u>.

In the instant case, Penn's Initial Brief raises a number of issues which are outside the scope of judicial inquiry in this proceeding and are not a proper subject for appeal. Further, many of Penn's arguments are now raised for the first time on appeal, and were not put at issue in the proceeding below. Penn should not be afforded the opportunity to raise such issues for the first time, but rather should be found to have waived any right to contest the bond validation on such grounds.

The final judgment entered by the trial court in this matter is supported by evidence and testimony in the record, and in fact, there is no conflicting testimony in the record other than Penn's pleadings and his testimony at the Motion for Rehearing, most of which concerns collateral matters beyond the proper scope of bond validation proceedings. There is nothing in the record nor in Penn's Initial Brief to demonstrate that any factual findings or legal conclusions by the trial court are not supported by the

record. Under these circumstances, a review of the record reflects competent, substantial evidence supporting the findings of the trial judge, and the judgment should be affirmed.

A review of the provisions of Chapter 75 will demonstrate that Penn's arguments regarding venue and notice of the hearing are totally without merit. Penn's challenge to the trial court's finding regarding the appropriateness of the City and County's emergency ordinances is likewise without merit, as Penn has cited nothing in the record nor any legal authority for his position. Nor will a review of the record substantiate Penn's argument that a referendum is required to approve the issuance of the bonds, because the general taxing powers of the City and County have not been pledged to the repayment of the bonds. Penn's attempt to raise Florida and federal constitutional issues lacks any legal basis. Finally, Penn seems to assert that there were a number of improprieties in connection with the final hearing; however, Penn was afforded an opportunity to present testimony and evidence at the final hearing as well as at the hearing on the Motion for Rehearing, and the hearing was in all respects proper and in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 75. For all the foregoing reasons, the final judgment entered by the trial court should be affirmed.

ARGUMENT

I. PLAINTIFF IS AUTHORIZED TO FILE PROCEEDINGS TO VALIDATE ITS OBLIGATIONS IN THE CIRCUIT COURT IN AND FOR ESCAMBIA COUNTY UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF §75.02, <u>FLORIDA STATUTES</u>.

Penn's assertion that the Circuit Court of the First Judicial Circuit of Florida, in and for Escambia County, was not the proper jurisdiction or venue for the validation proceeding at issue is based upon a reading of an isolated section of Chapter 163, Part I, <u>Florida Statutes</u> (1991), without considering other sections of the Florida Statutes which Chapter 163, Part I, itself required be considered in pari materia.

The Circuit Court had jurisdiction and venue over the validation proceeding pursuant to Article V, Section 5, of the Constitution of the State of Florida and Chapter 75, Florida Statutes (1991), as amended. The validation procedure set forth in §163.01(7)(d) is permissive and is intended only to facilitate the process of validation when instituted by entities which are established by interlocal agreement and comprised of members located in more than one county. Section 163.01(13), Florida Statutes (1991), specifically provides that:

The powers and authority granted by this section shall be in addition and supplemental to those granted by any other general, local, or special law. <u>Nothing contained</u> <u>herein shall be deemed to interfere with the application</u> <u>of any other law</u>. (emphasis added).

In the present case, the Florida Defense Finance and Accounting Service Center Authority was created by interlocal agreement between the City of Pensacola, located in Escambia County, and Escambia County. It is logical and proper that validation proceedings would be filed in the circuit court in and for Escambia County, pursuant to the general law of Chapter 75, <u>Florida Statutes</u> (1991).

This Court held that the language of §75.02, Florida Statutes (1991) encompasses "all entities with authority to issue bonds." <u>State v. Miami Beach Redevelopment Agency</u>, 392 So.2d 875, 884 (Fla. 1980). Section 75.02 states that a complaint for validation purposes shall be filed "in the circuit court in the county or in the county where the municipality or district, or any part thereof is located." Contrary to Penn's contention in the instant case, it was not necessary or required by Florida law that the validation action be instituted in Leon County, Florida. To require that such an action be brought only in Leon County would interfere with the venue mandated by §75.02, <u>Florida Statutes</u> (1991) and therefore be contrary to §163.01(13), <u>Florida Statutes</u> (1991).

In addition, such a requirement would impose significant inconvenience upon potential intervenors, such as Penn, by having to appear for validation proceedings in Leon County. Moreover, the provisions of §163.01(7)(d) were established as a matter of convenience for governmental, multi-jurisdictional bond issuers to avoid having to validate bonds for financings affecting multiple counties in each relative county across the state. The fact that the Authority did not find the provisions of §163.01(7)(d) convenient in this case, because no other counties were to be affected by the proposed bonds, in no way deprives the circuit court in and for Escambia County of proper jurisdiction.

Notwithstanding Penn's assertions, the provisions of §163.01(7)(d) are not jurisdictional but, at best, relate to the question of venue. The question as to venue raised by Penn has been determined properly by the circuit court in and for Escambia County. Absence a showing of some prejudice on account of alleged improper venue, there is no basis for this Court to reverse the circuit court's decision. See <u>Taylor v. Dasilva</u>, 401 So.2d 1161 (Fla. 3d DCA 1981) (when venue is proper in more than one county, choice rests with plaintiff and should not be disturbed without showing of substantial inconvenience).

II. PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF THE BOND VALIDATION HEARING WAS GIVEN AT LEAST TWENTY DAYS PRIOR TO THE DATE OF THE HEARING, AS REQUIRED BY §75.06, <u>FLORIDA</u> <u>STATUTES</u>.

In his Initial Brief, Penn argues that the Order to Show Cause issued by the trial court on December 11, 1992 (App. 2), was not published in accordance with the requirements of §75.06, <u>Florida</u> <u>Statutes</u>.

That statute contains the following requirements:

Before the date set for hearing, the clerk shall (1) publish a copy of the order in the county where the complaint is filed, and if plaintiff is a municipality or district in more than one county, then in each county, least once each week for 2 consecutive weeks, at commencing with the first publication, which shall not be less than 20 days before the date set for hearing but if there is a newspaper published in the territory to be affected by the issuance of the bonds or certificates, and in the county or counties the publication shall be therein unless otherwise ordered by the court. By this publication all property owners, taxpayers, citizens, and others having or claiming any right, title or interest in the county, municipality or district, or the taxable property therein, are made parties defendant to the action and the court has jurisdiction of them to the same extent as if named as defendants in the complaint and personally served with process. §75.06, Fla. Stat. (1991)

Penn admits that the notice was first published in the Pensacola News Journal on December 14, 1992, and that the bond validation hearing was held on January 4, 1993 (Penn initial brief, pages 2-3).

Florida Rules of Civil Procedure 1.090 governs the computation of time prescribed or allowed by any applicable statute, in the absence of specific provisions to the contrary. <u>Health Quest</u> <u>Corporation IV v. Department of Health and Rehabilitative Services</u>, 593 So.2d 533 (Fla. 1st DCA 1992). That rule provides that, in computating any period of time prescribed by applicable statute, the day of the event from which the designated period of time begins to run shall not be included, but the last day of the period shall be included unless it is a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, in which event the period shall run until the end of the next day which is neither a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.

Applying these rules to the instant proceeding, it is clear that the twentieth day following the first date of publication was January 3, 1993. Since that day was a Sunday, the next day, Monday, January 4, 1993, is considered to be the twentieth day. Accordingly, it is clear that the first publication of the show cause order on December 14, 1992, was accomplished "not less than twenty days" before the hearing date, January 4, 1993.

Penn argues that January 1, 2, and 3 should not be counted in the calculation of time because "all business activity had in fact stopped in preparation for merriment." However, it is clear under

the rules that Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays are included in the computation, unless the period of time prescribed or allowed is less than seven days. Fla.R.Civ.P. 1.090.

The trial judge made the following findings of fact with regard to proper publication of notice:

Due and proper notice addressed to the State of Florida and the several property owners, taxpayers and citizens of the City of Pensacola and Escambia County, Florida, including non-residents owning property or subject to taxation therein, and all others having or claimed any right, title or interest in property to be affected by the issuance by Plaintiff of the Bonds was duly published by the Clerk of this Court, once each week for three consecutive weeks, the first publication being at least twenty days prior to the date of said hearing, as required by law, all as will more fully appear from the affidavit of the publisher of <u>The Pensacola News Journal</u> filed herein. (App. 4, p. 17)

The record will reflect no testimony or evidence to contradict these findings of fact made by the trial judge. Further, the trial court specifically explained its findings at the Hearing on Penn's Motion for Rehearing (App. 10, pp. 33-34). Accordingly, the trial court's findings should be sustained by this Court.

III. THE TRIAL COURT'S FINDING THAT THE DETERMINATIONS BY THE CITY AND THE COUNTY THAT A VALID EMERGENCY REQUIRED IMMEDIATE ADOPTION OF THE TAX INCREMENT ORDINANCES WAS BASED UPON SUBSTANTIAL COMPETENT EVIDENCE AND SHOULD NOT BE DISTURBED BY THIS COURT.

In his Initial Brief, Penn argues that the "emergency" which is described in City Ordinance No. 38-93, and County Ordinance No. 92-45 "has never been explained to the public, and the taxpayers, and the persons who will be getting bureaucratically inspired taxbills" He further states that the findings and declaration of necessity contained in each ordinance "do not describe the Causes of residents' problems, or the Solutions." He goes on to argue that "nothing Good can come out of \$100,000,000.00 Bond issue for Tax-payers to pay, and the Banks-Super Rich to pick up Interest Income not subject to federal income tax." Penn also argues, in this portion of his brief, that the city council, county commissioners and various others organized and formed the Authority in "secrecy."

First, it should be noted that there is no evidence whatsoever in the record of any "secrecy" by any parties or entities involved in the formation of the Authority, or otherwise involved in this proceeding. Secondly, the trial court specifically found that no evidence of any kind had been produced indicating that the determinations by the City and County, respectively, that a valid emergency required immediate adoption of the Tax Increment Ordinances, were made on the basis of fraud or abuse of discretion. (App. 4, p. 11). The court went on to state as follows:

In the absence of such evidence, such determinations of the City Council and the Board of County Commissioners are legislative matters not subject to question by this Furthermore, the Court finds that the deadline Court. imposed by the United States Department of Defense for submission of final offers, including elimination of the contingencies of bond validation created an emergency situation because the City and the County could not comply with the normal notification requirements for validation and still complete the application submission Compliance with the normal in a timely manner. procedures for ordinance adoption would have delayed the validation beyond the application filing deadline, rendering adoption of the ordinances moot. In such circumstances, the declaration of an emergency so as to enable the ordinances to accomplish their intended purposes is reasonable and appropriate. (App. 4, pp. 11-12).

The trial court was correct in holding that the action of the Board of County Commissioners and City Council in declaring an emergency and using the emergency enactment procedures for the enactment of the ordinances was reasonable and appropriate. The law in Florida with respect to declaration of an emergency is that an emergency ordinance is presumptively valid, and the question of whether or not an emergency exists as to warrant its being made immediately effective rests in the judgment and discretion of the governing body. See State ex rel. Swift v. Dillon, 75 Fla. 785, 79 So. 29 (1918). Dillon was cited with approval in Metropolis Publishing Company v. City of Miami, 100 Fla. 784, 129 So. 913 (1930), in which a Miami zoning ordinance enacted under the charter emergency provisions was upheld. Likewise, in Speer v. Olson, 367 So.2d 207 (Fla. 1978), a case involving the validation of general obligation bonds issued by county municipal service taxing unit for acquisition of sewer and water systems, the court found that an emergency ordinance adopted by the Board of County Commissioners of Pasco County would not be disturbed, where there was no evidence before the trial court which would compel a conclusion that the Board's declaration of an emergency amounted to a sham or fraud. 367 So.2d at 213.

In the instant case, there is no evidence whatsoever in the record to refute the findings by the trial court on this issue, and accordingly, based upon the record and the authorities cited above, the finding should be sustained.

Penn also challenges the Findings and Declaration of necessity in both the City and County ordinances. The trial judge, however, found that the City Tax Increment Ordinance and the County Tax Increment Ordinance ". . . are for a valid and proper public purpose within the powers respectively of the City and the County to address in the manner provided therein, and such ordinances are legal, proper and valid in all respects." (App. 4, p. 13).

There is no testimony or evidence in the record to support any contrary finding, and accordingly, the trial court's determination in this regard should be upheld.

IV. THE GENERAL TAXING POWERS OF THE CITY OF PENSACOLA AND ESCAMBIA COUNTY HAVE NOT BEEN PLEDGED TO THE REPAYMENT OF THE BONDS OF THE FLORIDA DEFENSE FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING SERVICE CENTER AUTHORITY; THEREFORE, NO REFERENDUM WAS REQUIRED TO APPROVE THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS.

Initially, it should be noted that neither the City of Pensacola nor Escambia County have issued any bonds. The only "bonds" involved in the validation proceeding are the bonds of the Defense Finance and Accounting Service Center Authority. The Authority has no taxing power; therefore, it cannot pledge any ad valorem taxes to the payment of the bonds. The bonds are secured by lease payments from the City of Pensacola and Escambia County. These lease payments are secured by tax increment revenues which are measured in part by future increases in ad valorem tax receipts.

This exact financing mechanism has been approved by this Court in <u>State v. Miami Beach Redevelopment Agency</u>, 392 So.2d 875 (Fla. 1980). In that case, as in this instant case, trust funds were

created in which to deposit revenues measured by ad valorem tax increases. Only after the revenues are deposited in the trust fund would the bondholders' lien attach. Since the ad valorem tax is not necessarily deposited directly into the fund but is merely the measure of the annual contributions to be made by the City and the County, there is no pledge of the County and City ad valorem taxing power. <u>Id</u>. at 894.

The model of the ordinances involved in this bond financing has been approved by this Court in Miami Beach Redevelopment Id. at 898-99. Neither the City Tax Increment Ordinance Agency. nor the County Tax Increment Ordinance gives bondholders the right to compel the City or the County to levy ad valorem taxes. Therefore, in the constitutional sense, the general taxing power is not implicated, and no referendum is required. See Miami Beach Redevelopment Agency at 898; Tucker v. Underdown, 356 So.2d 251, 253-54 (Fla. 1978). The ordinances of the City and the County pledge the tax increment as a measure of the funds which will be appropriated each year. Even though the moneys used to make lease payments may come from ad valorem tax revenues, this does not bring the bonds within the referendum requirement. See <u>Miami Beach</u> Redevelopment Agency at 898.

The requirements of Article VII, Section 12 of the Constitution of the State of Florida apply only to bonds which pledge the full faith, credit and taxing power of governmental entities. Contrary to Penn's assertions, the City and the County have validly covenanted to budget and appropriate, in each of their

fiscal years during the term of their respective leases, a sufficient amount of <u>non-advalorem</u> revenues to make the required lease payments, in the event the tax increment revenues are insufficient therefor. Such a covenant does not constitute a pledge of the general taxing power of the City or of the County which would require the issuance of the bonds to be approved by referendum. This Court stated in finding that a similar covenant did not require bonds to be approved at an election in <u>Miami Beach</u> <u>Redevelopment Agency</u>:

That the statutory duty to make the annual contributions would become a contractual duty, part of the obligation of the bonds, does not mean, however, that these bonds are payable from ad valorem taxation, in the constitutional sense of the term.

Miami Beach Redevelopment Agency at 898.

The obligations of the City and the County to make payments under their respective leases are limited and special obligations, payable solely from the revenues pledged in the leases, and the leases do not constitute general obligations of or indebtedness of the Authority, the City, the County, the State of Florida, or any political subdivision thereof. Id.

This Court held in <u>Miami Beach Redevelopment Agency</u> that "where there is not direct pledge of ad valorem tax revenues, but merely a requirement of an annual appropriation from any available funds, the referendum provision of Article VII, Section 12 is not involved." <u>Id</u>. at 894. Thus, in the present case, the circuit court properly found that the taxing powers of the City and the County were unimpaired; therefore, no vote of the electors to approve issuance of the bonds was required under the laws of Florida.

V. CHAPTER 163, <u>FLORIDA STATUTES</u>, DOES NOT VIOLATE THE FEDERAL OR FLORIDA CONSTITUTION.

Penn argues that Chapter 163, <u>Florida Statutes</u>, which contains the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act, is invalid, contrary to Florida law, and contains provisions which ". . . are a form and substance of slavery and destroying the dignity of men and women." Penn goes on to state that the statute violates the Florida Constitution and the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments of the federal Constitution.

First, it should be noted that Penn did not raise any issue regarding the constitutionality of Chapter 163 in the bond validation proceeding below. Accordingly, he has waived his right to question the validity of the statute on appeal. Not having raised a constitutional question before the trial court, Penn is wrong in his effort to attempt to activate the jurisdiction of this Court in considering a constitutional question. See, e.g., <u>Davis V. State</u>, 383 So.2d 620 (Fla. 1980).

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